Public Document Pack

Human Resources
Committee
Agenda
Date: Thursday, 22 July 2021
Time: 10.00 am
Venue: City Hall, College Green, Bristol, BS1 5TR
(Council Chamber)
Distribution:
Councillors: Tim Wye, Steve Pearce, Sarah Classick, Richard Eddy, Lesley Alexander, Lorraine Francis,
Katy Grant, Farah Hussain and Kerry Bailes

Issued by: Steve Gregory, Democratic Services
City Hall, PO Box 3399, Bristol, BS3 9FS
Tel: 0117 92 24357
E-mail: democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk
Date: Wednesday, 14 July 2021

Human Resources Committee – Agenda

Agenda
1.

Confirmation of Chair for 2021/22

The Committee is asked to note that at its meeting on Tuesday 25th May 2021,
Full Council (AGM) appointed Councillor Tim Wye as Chair of the Human
Resources Committee for the 2021/22 Municipal Year.

2.

Confirmation of Vice Chair for 2021/22

The Committee is asked to note the appointment of Councillor Steve Pearce as
Vice-Chair of the Human Resources Committee for the 2021/22 Municipal Year.

3.

Welcome, Introductions and Safety Information
(Pages 5 - 7)

4.

Apologies for Absence

5.

Membership of the Human Resources Committee 2021/22

Councillors Tim Wye, Tom Renhard, Farah Hussain, Kerry Bailes, Lorraine Francis,
Katy Grant, Sarah Classick, Richard Eddy, Lesley Alexander.

6.

Terms of Reference

Members are asked to note the Terms of Reference as approved by Full Council
on Tuesday 25th May 2021.

7.

Dates and times of meetings for 2021/22

Meetings to commence at 10 am on 23 September 2020; 16 December 2020; 17
February 2022; 28 April 2022.

8.

Declarations of Interest

9.

Minutes of the Previous Meeting

(Pages 8 - 12)

Human Resources Committee – Agenda

To agree the minutes of the last meeting as a correct record.

(Pages 13 - 19)

10. Public Forum
NB. up to 30 minutes is allowed for this item
Any member of the public or councillor may participate in Public Forum. The
detailed arrangements for so doing are set out in the Public Information Sheet at
the back of this agenda. Please note that the following deadlines will apply in
relation to this meeting:Questions - Written questions must be received 3 clear working days prior to the
meeting. For this meeting, this means that your question(s) must be received in
this office at the latest by 5 pm on 16 July 2021.
Petitions and Statements - Petitions and statements must be received on the
working day prior to the meeting. For this meeting this means that your
submission must be received in this office at the latest by 12.00 noon on 21 July
2021.

11. Work Programme
To note the work programme.

(Page 20)

12. Workforce Strategy - Overview

10.15 am

https://bristolcouncil.sharepoint.com/sites/HealthSafetyandWellbeing/Shared%2
0Documents/Forms/Public%20view.aspx?id=%2Fsites%2FHealthSafetyandWellbe
ing%2FShared%20Documents%2FWorkforce%20Strategy%202020.pdf&parent=
%2Fsites%2FHealthSafetyandWellbeing%2FShared%20Documents

13. Annual Report Pay Gap report

10.45 am
(Pages 21 - 49)

14. Future of Workspaces Principles

11.15 am
(Pages 50 - 52)

15. Selection Committee - Size & Composition

11.35 am
(Pages 53 - 56)

16. COVID-19 - workforce update and return to workplaces

Human Resources Committee – Agenda

(Pages 57 - 61)

Agenda Item 3
www.bristol.gov.uk

Public Information Sheet
Inspection of Papers - Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
You can find papers for all our meetings on our website at www.bristol.gov.uk.
Covid-19: changes to how we hold public meetings
Following changes to government rules, public meetings including Cabinet, Full Council, regulatory
meetings (where planning and licensing decisions are made) and scrutiny will now be held at City Hall.
Covid Safety Measures for Attendance at City Hall
Due to Covid Safety requirements we have put the following measures in place:


All attendees to this meeting are asked to have a Covid lateral flow test 24 hrs prior to the day
of the meeting and show the results of a negative test. It’s important that you report the results of
your test and that you get confirmation sent to your phone. Reception staff may ask to see this on the
day of the meeting. If you have a positive test or if you develop any Covid 19 symptoms - high




temperature, a new continuous cough, or a loss or change to your sense of smell or taste, you
should book a test on GOV.UK and self-isolate while you wait for the results.
You are required to wear a face mask at all times unless you are exempt. Social distancing
rules remain in place.
Members of the press and public who wish to attend City Hall are advised that you may be
asked to watch the meeting on a screen in another room as due to the maximum occupancy of
the venue.

Other formats and languages and assistance for those with hearing impairment
Other o check with and
You can get committee papers in other formats (e.g. large print, audio tape, braille etc) or in
community languages by contacting the Democratic Services Officer. Please give as much notice as
possible. We cannot guarantee re-formatting or translation of papers before the date of a particular
meeting.
Committee rooms are fitted with induction loops to assist people with hearing impairment. If you
require any assistance with this please speak to the Democratic Services Officer.
Public Forum
Members of the public may make a written statement ask a question or present a petition to most
meetings. Your statement or question will be sent to the Committee Members and will be published
on the Council’s website before the meeting. Please send it to democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk.

Page 5

www.bristol.gov.uk

The following requirements apply:



The statement is received no later than 12.00 noon on the working day before the meeting and is
about a matter which is the responsibility of the committee concerned.
The question is received no later than 5pm three clear working days before the meeting.

Any statement submitted should be no longer than one side of A4 paper. If the statement is longer
than this, then for reasons of cost, it may be that only the first sheet will be copied and made available
at the meeting. For copyright reasons, we are unable to reproduce or publish newspaper or magazine
articles that may be attached to statements.
By participating in public forum business, we will assume that you have consented to your name and
the details of your submission being recorded and circulated to the Committee and published within
the minutes. Your statement or question will also be made available to the public via publication on
the Council’s website and may be provided upon request in response to Freedom of Information Act
requests in the future.
We will try to remove personal and identifiable information. However, because of time constraints we
cannot guarantee this, and you may therefore wish to consider if your statement contains information
that you would prefer not to be in the public domain. Other committee papers may be placed on the
council’s website and information within them may be searchable on the internet.
During the meeting:









Public Forum is normally one of the first items on the agenda, although statements and petitions
that relate to specific items on the agenda may be taken just before the item concerned.
There will be no debate on statements or petitions.
The Chair will call each submission in turn. When you are invited to speak, please make sure that
your presentation focuses on the key issues that you would like Members to consider. This will
have the greatest impact.
Your time allocation may have to be strictly limited if there are a lot of submissions. This may be as
short as one minute.
If there are a large number of submissions on one matter a representative may be requested to
speak on the groups behalf.
If you do not attend or speak at the meeting at which your public forum submission is being taken
your statement will be noted by Members.
Under our security arrangements, please note that members of the public (and bags) may be
searched. This may apply in the interests of helping to ensure a safe meeting environment for all
attending.
As part of the drive to reduce single-use plastics in council-owned buildings, please bring your own
water bottle in order to fill up from the water dispenser.

For further information about procedure rules please refer to our Constitution
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/how-council-decisions-are-made/constitution

Page 6

www.bristol.gov.uk

Webcasting/ Recording of meetings
Members of the public attending meetings or taking part in Public forum are advised that all Full
Council and Cabinet meetings and some other committee meetings are now filmed for live or
subsequent broadcast via the council's webcasting pages. The whole of the meeting is filmed (except
where there are confidential or exempt items). If you ask a question or make a representation, then
you are likely to be filmed and will be deemed to have given your consent to this. If you do not wish to
be filmed you need to make yourself known to the webcasting staff. However, the Openness of Local
Government Bodies Regulations 2014 now means that persons attending meetings may take
photographs, film and audio record the proceedings and report on the meeting (Oral commentary is
not permitted during the meeting as it would be disruptive). Members of the public should therefore
be aware that they may be filmed by others attending and that is not within the council’s control.
The privacy notice for Democratic Services can be viewed at www.bristol.gov.uk/about-ourwebsite/privacy-and-processing-notices-for-resource-services

Page 7

Agenda Item 6
HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Terms of Reference

Membership

Nine members of the authority, politically-balanced in line with usual proportionality rules. In
addition, the relevant member of the Executive will be invited to attend meetings ex officio in
a non-voting capacity (they will count towards the quorum).

When the Committee is discharging functions relating to discipline and dismissals one or
more voting members of the Committee will be substituted with a member(s) of the
Executive.

Overview

The employment and remuneration of the Chief Executive (Head of Paid Service), Executive
Directors and Directors. Full Council has delegated to the Committee the power to determine
the terms and conditions on which employees hold office including procedures for their
dismissal (s.112 Local Government Act 1972) and functions relating to local government
pensions (regulations under s.7, 12 and 24 Superannuation Act 1972).

The oversight and scrutiny of the wellbeing, performance and employment practices of the
council and its workforce, and the implementation of its equality policies relating to
employees.

Functions

A. Full Council has delegated the following functions to the Human Resources
Committee to be discharged in accordance with the Officer Employment Procedure
Rules:

1. Organisational change affecting Executive Directors and Directors
a. Consider the workforce implications of any proposal from the Chief
Executive to change the organisational structure of the Council where
Executive Directors or Directors may be at risk of redundancy.
2. Conduct and capability – Chief Executive, Chief Finance Officer and
Monitoring Officer

Page 8

a. Consider any allegations/complaints regarding the conduct and/or any
capability issues (performance or health) of the Head of Paid Service,
Monitoring Officer, Chief Finance Officer, having regard to the model
procedures and associated guidance of the Joint Negotiating
Committee for Local Authority Chief Executives and Joint Negotiating
Committee for Chief Officers. Where necessary, take action, except in
relation to dismissal, where the Committee may recommend dismissal
to Full Council.
b. The suspension of the Chief Executive, Monitoring Officer and Chief
Finance Officer is delegated to the Chair of the Committee; the
suspension of Executive Directors and Directors is delegated to the
Chief Executive.
3. Severance Payments – Chief Executive, Executive Directors and
Directors
a. Determine the preferred option(s) for resolution and parameters of any
negotiation that may lead to a severance payment to the Chief
Executive, Executive Director or Director.
4. Grievances affecting the Chief Executive
a. Hear and determine any grievance submitted by the Chief Executive
provided that it has been referred by the Monitoring Officer.
b. Hear and determine any grievance submitted by an employee against
the Chief Executive where referred by the Monitoring Officer or
Director: Workforce and Change.
5. Terms and conditions of employment including remuneration of the
Chief Executive, Executive Directors and Directors
a. Oversight of contracts of employment for the Chief Executive,
Executive Directors and Directors employed in accordance with the
Joint Negotiating Committee Chief Executives or the Joint Negotiating
Committee Chief Officers of Local Authorities.
b. Setting the terms and conditions of employment for the Chief
Executive, Executive Directors and Directors.
c. Determining any changes to the pay of the Chief Executive during their
employment in accordance with the Council’s Pay Policy Statement.
d. Consideration of requests for increases in pay of more than 10% above
the minimum of the pay range during employment for Executive
Directors and Directors, subject to a recommendation from the Chief
Executive and Director: Workforce and Change.

Page 9

e. Consider and make recommendations to Full Council in relation to the
annual Pay Policy Statement. (The Mayor should be involved and due
regard given to any proposals they may have before the statement is
considered and approved by Full Council).

B. The Committee oversees and scrutinises the wellbeing, performance and
employment practices of the Council, and the implementation of its equality policies
relating to the workforce.

1.

Safety Health and Wellbeing of the Council’s Workforce

a. Receive the annual report on the safety, health and wellbeing of the Council’s
workforce.
b. Monitor the development and implementation of the Council’s safety, health
and wellbeing plans.
c. Receive monitoring reports on employee engagement and health and
wellbeing
2.

Workforce performance reporting

a. Monitor the development and implementation of the Council’s Workforce
Strategy.
b. Receive monitoring reports on workforce diversity, employee engagement,
performance management, workforce spend and any changes to HR policies.

3.

The implementation of equality policies relating to the workforce.

a. Receive the Council’s annual pay gap reports.
b. Receive reports on the progress on workforce related actions in the Equality
and Inclusion Policy
c. Receive reports on the work of the staff led groups.

Page 10

C. Other matters

a. Consider any matters referred to the Committee by the Chief Executive or
Director: Workforce and Change which have significant workforce implications
such as changes to terms and conditions of employment.
b. Hear and determine any collective dispute from trade unions where referred
by the Director of Workforce and Change.
c. Approve the Senior Coroner’s salary.
d. Determine the annual work programme of the Committee.
e. Produce an annual report to Full Council on the work of the Committee.

Page 11

Page 12

Agenda Item 9
democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

Public Document Pack

Bristol City Council
Minutes of the Human Resources Committee
(Zoom Meeting)
18 February 2021 at 10 am

Members Present: Councillors: Richard Eddy, Gary Hopkins, Ruth Pickersgill, Paula O'Rourke, Jon Wellington (Chair)
Officers in Attendance: - John Walsh (Director Workforce & Change), Mark Williams (Head of Human
Resources), David Martin (Facilities Management), Jane Taylor Head of Service (Employment, Skills &
Learning), Darren Perkins (Apprenticeship Manager), Steve Gregory (Democratic Services)
1. Welcome, Introductions and Safety Information
The Chair welcomed all parties to the meeting and introductions were made. The Chair set out the process
about the meeting being held via Zoom facility.
2. Apologies for Absence
No apologies had been received.
Councillor Jeff Lovell was not present.
3. Declarations of Interest
There were no declarations of interest.
4. Minutes of the previous meeting
Resolved – that the Minutes of the previous meeting held on 17 December 2020 be agreed as a
correct record.
Matters arising:
1. That an action sheet be produced for future meetings.
2. Head of HR confirmed that Recruitment Timescales item would be included in the Work
Programme for 2021/22.
6. Public Forum

Page 13

democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

Questions

Name
Suzanne Audrey Q1 & Q2

Subject
Senior leadership structure changes since 2016

The answers to Questions 1 & 2, as published on the Council’s website were noted.
Supplementary Question 1
Has there been any reduction of work put out to external consultants/agencies?
The report arose from a request by members of the HR Committee to show how many senior posts there were,
compared to 2016, within the Leadership Structure at present. How workloads were dealt with and managed in a
wider context would be considered as appropriate.
Supplementary Question 2
The former interim Executive Director appeared to be still working for the City Council by attending a meeting of
the Temple Quarter St Philips Marsh cross party working group held on 22 January 2021, if no longer employed by
the Council clarify in what capacity?
The Head of HR clarified that the former interim Executive Director no longer worked for the City Council.
Further to SQ2 the Committee was advised by the Co-Chair of the Temple Quarter St Philips Marsh cross party
working group (Councillor O’Rourke) that the former interim Executive Director had considerable experience
working on this project, when previously engaged by the Council, and was present at the meeting on 22 January
2021 in a private capacity, being remunerated by the Project, not the City Council. This was deemed appropriate as
it retained continuity of experience and gave best value for money for the Council.
Statements
Name
Jeff Sutton GMB
Tom Merchant – Bristol UNISON
Councillor Jo Sergeant
Councillor Mhairi Threlfall

Subject
Proposed TUPE transfer of BCC staff to BWC
Proposed TUPE transfer of BCC staff to BWC
Outsourcing of BCC Facilities Management to
BWC
Pay Policy Statement & Senior Management
structures

All Statements were noted, and points raised were acknowledged.
7. Chair’s Business
The Chair explained that the TUPE transfer issues raised during the public forum session could be discussed at
this point of the meeting following a verbal update from the Director of Workforce & Change.
The Director of Workforce & Change said that the proposal to transfer cleaning and security staff to the Bristol
Waste Company (BWC) was first considered in 2019 by the former Commercialisation Directorate, the work

Page 14

democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

had been subsequently picked up whilst reviewing facilities management to explore improved resource
opportunities by the BWC given its historical experience in this area of work. Practices were looked at by a
Council Board last February to explore options and significant scrutiny by the Board was undertaken to ensure
the business case was sound. The findings had subsequently been reviewed and at all time staff conditions of
service were at the forefront of the work including clauses in the contract to fully protect all employees.
Consultation feedback from staff had mostly been positive. The proposals included significant benefits for
staff including investment in people, provision of specialist equipment, professional development and
training, health & safety improvements.
Some members of the Committee felt that the reassurances given conflicted with the information they had
received from individual employees and with the comments made by the trade unions in their public forum
statements. This included potentially poorer terms and conditions of employment, job losses, employees not
being allowed to freely speak about the changes or make representation to council meeting public forums,
and lack of quality assurances such as equality procedures e.g. access to SLG’s.
The Director of Workforce & Change clarified that no member of the cleaning and security staff had been
asked to sign an agreement regarding disclosure of information about the proposed changes. The legal
contract had clauses to protect staff fully, up to and including withdrawing from the contract if staff were
treated inappropriately by BWC. At the end of the contract period it could either be extended or employees
could be brought back into the employ of the Council.
The Committee was also informed that extensive individual and trade union consultations had taken place in
full accordance with HR policies. This included 121 meetings between employees and management, group
zoom meetings and questionnaires being sent out to employees. There had been good levels of participation
from both employees and trade unions and assurances had been given regarding job protection throughout
the consultation process. Further TUPE consultations would take place if Cabinet agreed the proposals and
would address any ongoing concerns prior to the transfer. Existing Terms & Conditions would transfer with
existing employees and would be offered to new employees.
After further discussion Members felt that the significant change to policy in this matter should have received
greater in depth scrutiny prior to a report being put to Cabinet in order to enable enough time to understand
and comment on the proposed changes.
It was proposed and seconded that, as there would be insufficient time for OSMB on 24 February to
effectively scrutinise this issue prior to Cabinet decision on the 25 February, the Chair on behalf of the Human
Resources Committee write to Cabinet recommending that the report on Delivery of Cleaning and Security be
postponed for further consideration until such time as sufficient scrutiny had taken place by the OSMB.
On being put to the vote it was unanimously Resolved –
That the Chair, on behalf of the Human Resources Committee, write to Cabinet requesting that the agenda
item Delivery of Cleaning and Security Services be deferred until such time as sufficient scrutiny had taken
place by the OSMB.

8. Work Programme

Page 15

democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

The Committee received and noted the updated Work Programme for 2020/21.
9. Pay Policy Statement
The Committee received a detailed report from the Director Workforce & Change to consider the Pay Policy
Statement (PPS) for 2021/22. It was noted that the Localism Act 2011 required local authorities to agree and
publish a pay policy statement annually before the start of the financial year to which the statement related
to.
The Committee’s attention was specifically drawn to the following points –
1. The Pay Policy introduced a new pay range to the post of Chief Executive following its creation in May
2020 and a new provision that the pay ratio between the lowest and highest earner must not exceed
1:10.
2. The proposed pay range for the post of Chief Executive was £171.500 to £182,500 with a proposed
salary for the existing postholder with effect from 1 April 2021, this would mean an increase in current
salary of £2,000.
3. The proposals for the pay of the Chief Executive took account of advice from external pay specialists
(Korn Ferry) who highlighted that the Chief executive post should have a different pay scale to other
posts.
4. The average pay of a core city Chief Executive was currently £192,000 per annum (excluding Bristol City
Council);
5. Korn Ferry had confirmed that the current pay ranges for Executive Directors and Directors were in line
with the market rate.
6. The Pay Policy had been updated to reflect the introduction of the Exit Cap to limit exit payments
however on 12 February 2021 the Government had revoked this, new legislation would replace this.
The Council’s constitutional arrangements in relation to exit payments would therefore continue to
apply.
The Committee then received a summary of the report from Korn Ferry representatives Abul Uddin and
Matthew Wilton.
Key points highlighted during discussion were –
1. Noted that some members of Council for the last three years had consistently voted against the PPS as it was
considered that the bandings were heavily weighted at rewarding senior leaders at the expense of the rest of
the organisation.
2. There was currently no cap or restrictions on remuneration for Director posts or external consultants.
3. Concern that the extra pay for the Chief Executive post, whilst modest, could lead to a further increase and
this could further lead to increases in senior officers pay generally. It was clarified that the HR Committee
would have a role overseeing a further pay rise of the CX post.
4. Senior officers and consultants were consistently in a better position than employees lower down in the
organisation in terms of how they were treated.
5. Proper recognition for rewarding staff was appropriate, especially having regard to recruitment and retention,
so the proposal to increase the Chief Executive pay was in line with the new pay range for the new post of
Chief Executive. Noted that it was a Council decision to create the post of Chief Executive and so the situation

Page 16

democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

was not about a pay rise rather that the role must have the correct remuneration which in this case was the
lowest point on the pay scale.
6. Regarding employing consultants, the Council now had a new strategic partner engaged to limit the use
consultants to resolve this issue in relation to capital schemes in particular. Regarding employees working
outside normal hours, as highlighted during public forum, this was something that the Committee could
review soon. Regarding Chief Executive pay this was a post reinstated by the Council and so could not allow a
pay anomaly in terms of the basic pay of the grade of the post.
It was then moved and seconded that the Pay Policy Statement and the recommendations as set out in the
report be accepted.
On being put to the vote there were three in favour and two against. Therefore, the motion was carried.
Resolved –
1. That the Human Resources Committee recommend to Full Council, that the Pay Policy Statement
2021/22 take effect from 1 April 2021.
2. That the annual salary of £171,500 for the Chief Executive to take effect from 1 April 2021, subject
to Full Council approval of the Pay Policy Statement on 16 March 2021, be approved.
Councillor Eddy left the meeting at this point
9. Senior Leadership Structure Changes since 2016
The Committee received a detailed report from the Director Workforce & Change which provided the
committee with a summary of the changes to the Council’s senior leaderships structure since 2016.
The Committee noted that Senior leadership costs had reduced by £941k per annum since 2016 and the
number of senior leadership roles within the Council had reduced from 25.2 FTE to 15 FTE since 2016. Interim
staff were no longer currently employed, this had achieved significant cost savings.
Key points highlighted during discussion were –
1. Recent pandemic had put extra pressure on officers’ lower tiers in the organisation, this needed to be
looked at by the HR Committee. Terms of Reference need be amended to fully include lower tiers.
2. Important to look at differentials in pay and conditions in other tiers within the Council.
3. Reduction in senior posts welcomed but work of external consultants should also be included as part of
the overall pay structure. HR Committee to have oversight of these costs where salaries were paid
directly by the Council. Noted that the Councils strategy was to reduce consultancy costs. A report
would be brought to the HR Committee on this.
4. Members were advised that other committees of the Council oversaw aspects relating to the
engagement of consultants ie, Audit Committee, Scrutiny Commissions.

Page 17

democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

5. Important that all ToR’s for committees were specific to each committee to ensure absolute clarity and
avoid cross over of functions.
Resolved – That the report be noted.
10. Covid-19 – update
The Committee received an update report from the Director Workforce and Change in respect of the Covid-19
crisis which had been identified as the most significant incident the Council had faced in living memory and to
which it had responded quickly and effectively.
The Committee noted that a program for all eligible staff to receive vaccinations had been rolled out i.e., staff
working in care settings or where they visit people in their homes. Also, lateral flow testing had been offered
to staff where they could not work from home.
Arising from questions the following points were clarified –
1. Furloughed staff that had been successfully redeployed and those that remained on furlough would
return to their substantive posts once the Covid-19 crisis was over and there were no plans to reduce
staff. If for any reason furlough needed to be extended the Committee was assured that all staff would
be looked after.
2. Regarding carers leave the Committee was advised that this had been increased from six to twenty
days per annum for the period October 2020 to March 2021 and that would remain in place, at the end
of March the Council would review arrangements with the emphasis of giving continuing support to
staff. Noted that up to the end of September staff had been able to take as much carers leave as was
necessary.
3. There had been a positive response to take up of vaccinations amongst care staff and where needed
encouragement was given whilst fully acknowledging that for reasons such as pregnancy this was not
always possible.
4. Concern was expressed that some care staff might not want to take up a vaccination offer and if so it
was asked that residents in care homes and people in their own homes should be made aware of this.
The Head of HR confirmed that such disclosure would need to be clarified and undertook to investigate
this.
Resolved – That the Covid-19 update report be noted.
11. Apprenticeships - Annual Review
The Committee received a detailed report from the Director Education Learning and Skills providing an update
on the progress of the Council’s apprenticeship provision for departmental staff and staff employed within
maintained schools and the progress that had been made on developing the Bristol Apprenticeships offer, levy
funding and joint working needed to embed apprenticeships as a primary source of staff development and
training aligned to workforce planning.
The Committee noted the following key points –

Page 18

democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

There had been 429 apprenticeships in total since May 2017.
The Covid-19 crisis had impacted on apprentice starts.
The Levy spend was £1.3m against contributions of £3.9m.
Levy funds expired at £583k.
The number of recruits had been significantly reduced during the Covid-19 crisis.
The growth in numbers of starts had been encouraging.

Arising from questions the following points were clarified/made –
1. Concern was expressed that young people might be missing out on career advice and apprenticeships,
particularly the impact on the BAME community. It was asked if the Levy fund surplus could be used to
provide additional staff resource. The Committee was informed that the Levy fund was not able to be
used for the funding of additional staff unless costs related directly to the apprenticeship programme.
However, there were other sources of funding available involving perhaps the West of England
Combined Authority, that might be able to support further work especially for small and medium sized
employers which formed the major source of apprenticeship employment.
2. Spending of Levy fund money was very restricted as it was primarily focused on training, and it was
recognised that there were many barriers to the unlocking of funding. This was something being
experienced across the City and other local authorities in the south west of England.
3. It was noted that the Bristol Waste company managed its own apprenticeship scheme.
4. There were several ideas and suggestion to resolve the funding impasse and members of the
committee felt that further discussion should take place after the meeting to find areas where real
progress could be made.
Resolved – That the update report be noted.

CHAIR
Meeting ended at 12.10 pm

Page 19

HR Committee
Work programme 2021/22
Agenda items
(subject to confirmation)

Forthcoming meetings

22nd July (AGM)

September

Page 20

December

February

Work Programme
Workforce Strategy - overview
Selection Committee – Size & Composition
Return to the Workplace



COVID Recovery and Update
















Gender/Race/Disability/LGB Pay Gap
Sickness – thematic review
Common Activities Project
Workforce Spend
Health Safety & Wellbeing Annual Report
Recruitment - thematic review
Workforce Diversity Report
Staff Pulse Survey Findings
Staff Led Groups Annual Report
Pay Policy Statement
Apprentice Annual Report
Update on Workforce Strategy
Avon Pension Fund annual report
Learning and Talent Development

Agenda Item 11

April






Agenda Item 13

HR Committee
22nd July 2021
Report of:

Director: Workforce & Change and Director: Policy, Strategy and Partnerships

Title:

Annual Pay Gap Report

Ward:

N/A

Officer Presenting Report:

Mark Williams (Head of Human Resources)

Contact Telephone Number:

07795 446270

Recommendation
That the Committee notes the report and the work that is being undertaken to close the pay gaps.
Summary
This annual report provides information on the gender, race, disability and LGB pay gaps for the City
Council at the report date of 31 March 2020 and work the Council is doing to address the pay gaps.
The significant issues in the report are:
- The mean gender pay gap is 4.26% and has increased from 4.08%. However, the median gender pay gap
has fallen by 0.4%.
- The City Council is one of a small number of employers in the UK to publish the race pay gap. Few
employers have been identified who publish their disability and LGB pay gaps.
- Other than gender, our pay gap reporting is reliant on employee disclosure. 93% of the workforce have
disclosed their ethnicity. 88% of the workforce have disclosed whether or not they have a disability. 73%
have disclosed their sexual orientation.
- The mean race pay gap is 9.78%. The pay gap is closing and has reduced from 15.06% in 2016.
- The mean disability pay gap is 1.37% and has fallen from 1.97%. However, the median pay has
increased due to an increase in the number of disabled employees in the second pay quartile.
- The LGB pay gap is reported for the first time and the mean pay gap is 2.04% and the median pay gap is
3.06%.
- Clear plans and targets are in place to reduce the pay gaps in future years.

Page 21

Policy
1.

Publication of the Gender Pay Gap satisfies the Council’s legal obligation under the Equality Act
2010 (Specific Duties and Public Authorities) Regulations 2017. Due to COVID-19, the
government has relaxed the requirement for employers to publish their gender pay gap in 2020.
There is no requirement upon employers to publish their race, disability or LGB pay gaps. The
Council’s policy is to publish this information as part of our drive to become an inclusive
employer with a workforce that reflects the communities we serve.

Consultation
2.

Internal
Not required because this report is for information only.

3.

External
Not required because this report is for information only.

Context
4.
Background
4.1. From 2017 onwards, any UK organisation employing 250 or more employees must report
publicly on its gender pay gap. The gender pay gap is a measurement of the difference
between men and women’s average salaries.
4.2. The Equalities Act Regulations require public authorities, to publish the data in six different
ways: the mean and median gender pay gaps; the mean and median gender bonus gaps; the
proportion of men and women who received bonuses, and the number of men and women
according to quartile pay bands.
4.3. There is currently no legal obligation for employers to report upon anything other than the
gender pay gap. As part of our Workforce Strategy the Council has further committed to
report upon and support work to tackle the race, disability and LGB pay gaps. These pay gaps
rely on employee disclosure, employees are not obliged to disclose this information. Currently,
7% of the workforce have not disclosed their ethnicity and 11.7% of the workforce have not
disclosed whether or not they have a disability. 26.8% of the workforce have not disclosed
their sexual orientation. We are working to reduce the number of unknown declarations.
4.4. The race pay gap compares the average hourly pay of disclosed Black, Asian and Minority
Ethnic workers, and White British employees. The Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic pay gap
looks at all roles and shows whether white employees are on average occupying higher paying
roles than Black, Asian, and Minority Ethnic employees, or vice versa.
4.5. The disability pay gap compares the average hourly pay of disclosed disabled and non-disabled
employees. There is no obligation upon employers to report upon this information. All roles
are examined to find out if non-disabled employees are on average occupying higher paying
roles than disabled employees.

4.6.The Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual (LGB) pay gap compares the average hourly pay of LGB and
Heterosexual employees. There is no obligation upon employers to report upon this information.

Page 22

All roles are examined to find out if Heterosexual employees are on average occupying higher
paying roles than those LGB employees.

4.7. We do not report on the pay gap for transgender employees as there are three employees.
Undertaking a pay gap analysis is not possible given the small number of declarations.
5.

Findings from our pay gap data
5.1. Gender Pay Gap
5.2.1 The Councils gender pay gap analysis indicates that mean pay for men is 4.08% higher
than that of women and the median pay for men is 8.9% higher than that of women. The
difference between the median and the mean figures is due to the high proportion of
women in the top quartile of employees. The mean gender pay gap is significantly lower
than that of the national average, which is currently 17.2%. The median gender pay gap is
also significantly lower than the national average of 17.3% (please see appendix 1).
5.2.2 We have the 4th lowest gender pay gap amongst Core City comparators and the lowest
pay gap amongst local Public Sector employers. We have found that some organisation
have chosen to delay publishing their pay gaps following the government decision to
relax requirements on employers.
5.2.3 Our findings show higher levels of female representation in lower graded part time roles
with women forming the majority of staff in the two lower earnings quartiles. Due to
5.2.4 There is a negative gender pay gap for women in senior roles within the pay structure i.e.
women are more likely to be paid more than men in senior roles.
5.2.5 Gender pay gaps were identified within certain grades. This arises from the fact that men
having longer tenure in their jobs, which enables them to progress further through the
respective pay ranges.
5.2. Race Pay Gap
5.3.1 The Councils race pay gap analysis indicates that mean pay for White British staff is 9.78%
higher than that of Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic staff and the median pay for White
British is 16% higher than that of Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic staff.
5.3.2 The Councils race pay gap has reduced from a mean of 15.38% in 2016, to a mean of
9.78% in 2020. We have the lowest ethnicity pay gap amongst the small number of Core
City comparators that publish their ethnicity pay gap.
5.3.3 The difference between the median and the mean figures is due to a lower proportion of
Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic staff in the higher pay quartiles 3 & 4, against a high
proportion of Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic staff in quartile 1, which is the lower pay
quartile.

Page 23

5.3.4 When the mean pay gap is compared, we see the full-time mean is 7.4% and the part
time mean is 13.4%. Part time Black, Asian, and Minority Ethnic staff have the biggest
race pay gap.

5.4 Disability Pay Gap
5.4.1 The Councils disability pay gap analysis indicates that mean pay for non-disabled staff is
1.97%% higher than that of disabled staff and the median pay for non-disabled staff is
5.09% higher than that of disabled staff.
5.4.2 The greatest disparity between disabled and non-disabled staff is in the top pay Quartile
(4). We have not found any published information from other organisations so we can
compare our performance, however the Trade Union Congress (TUC) estimate the
disability pay gap to be 19.6% across the UK and 9% in the South West.
5.4.3 When the mean pay gap is compared, we see the full time mean pay gap is 2.6% and the
part time mean pay gap is -0.3%.
5.5 LBG Pay Gap
5.5.1 The Councils LBG pay gap analysis indicates that mean pay for LGB staff is 2.04% higher
than that of Heterosexual staff and the median pay for LGB staff is 3.06% higher than that
of Heterosexual staff.
5.5.2 The lower pay quartiles have a slightly higher proportion of LGB employees than the
upper quartiles. We have not found any published information from other organisations
to compare our performance.
5.5.3 When the mean pay gap is compared, we see the full time mean pay gap is 2.1% and the
part time mean pay gap is 4.4%.

6.

Closing the gap
6.1 Our equality policy and strategy set out our commitment to equality and diversity, and how we
will; tackle equalities issues, aim to eliminate discrimination, foster good relationships between
communities in Bristol and ensure those from different backgrounds have similar life
opportunities. The annual report was considered at Full Council on 6th July 2021 and this sets
out the Council’s priorities for the next twelve months.
6.2 Our Workforce Strategy includes new targets and priorities that will support narrowing the pay
gaps identified in this report. We will be setting new stretching diversity targets and to
increase the number of BAME, disabled and women colleagues in senior management
positions using positive action initiatives. Specific action that is being taken that will contribute
to closing pay gaps are set out below:

Page 24

6.2.1 A range of changes to recruitment and selection processes including new secondment
(previously ‘acting up’) policy. Changes include ensuring all opportunities are widely
promoted across the organisation rather than to specific teams/groups and will remove
the option of direct appointments to short term roles. There will also be positive action
guidance. These changes were implemented in September 2020 and have increased
opportunities for career progression and will improve the diversity of the workforce at
higher pay grades.
6.2.2 Service level workforce and succession have been introduced as part of the annual
service planning cycle. Managers have access to the HR diversity dashboard and
succession planning tools and are asked to identify and address diversity and pay gaps.
6.2.3 A new monthly Pay Gap Report is going to be created allowing us to have real time
information about the councils pay gaps. This will enable us to compare our statutory
reporting figure against a current pay gap.
6.2.4 A Talent development steering group has been established to shape a programme to
nurture talent and help colleagues develop their careers. This includes:

Talent mapping and the leadership pipeline.

Identifying talent and encouraging colleagues to seek development.

New in-house leadership development module on talent development of team
members, encouraging effective career conversations.

Use apprenticeships systematically as pathways into professions where there is
occupational segregation and poor representation e.g. women and BAME
workers.

Increased offer of structured development opportunities.

Offer defined secondment and/or project opportunities for BCC Stepping Up
graduates, and colleagues completing apprenticeships, in house leadership
programmes and other learning programmes.

Increased mentoring and coaching.

Introduction of positive action initiatives such as Diverse Voices – which provides
experience leadership forums and brings diverse voices to council decision
making.

Developing new initiatives such as career passports this intervention is designed
to improve the diversity of the workforce and will contribute to closing pay gaps.
6.2.5 We have set the following organisational targets for 2021/22:

Increase the percentage of employment offers made to people living in the 10%
most deprived areas – Target 6.5%

Percentage of top earners who are women – Target 56%

Reduce the gender pay gap – Target 3.75%

Reduce the race pay gap – Target 7.5%

Difference between progression rate of BAME and non-BAME employee –Target
0% (no difference)

Difference between progression rate of Women and Men – Target 0% (no
difference)
7.

City-wide action to reduce pay gaps

Page 25

7.1 City-wide action is being taken to reduce the gender pay gap through the Women in Business
Charter: Bristol. The City Council is founding signatory of the Charter which is designed to
enable organisation to achieve gender equality and inclusivity for all women in business. There
are currently 40 organisations in the City which are signatories. They are from all sectors and
include small businesses. The council is re-accredited annually and our plans and priorities are
assessed.
7.2 City-wide action to reduce the race pay gap is being taken. Bristol City Council has led the
development and production of the city’s first ever Race Equality H.R. data product, which
includes many of the major Public Sector organisations in the City, through Bristol’s Race
Equality Strategic Leaders Group. The latest data will include an evaluation of Race
representation at Board level or equivalent.
7.3 The group has committed to producing this report on a bi-annual basis, to enable monitoring of
trends in relation to race equality across partner organisations, with detailed actions plans set
by partners in order to bring about improvements in race equality performance. The latest data
will be published shortly.
7.4 The driving force of this key initiative is to ensure that we produce fairer, more inclusive
workplaces for our employees across the City as well as ensuring more representative
workforces to serve the communities of Bristol. This project focuses on transparently
presenting how all major public sector agencies in the City are performing in terms of their race
equality data, including detail on pay by race for key H.R. indicators such as by representation,
pay, grievance, disciplinary and sickness data.
7.5 Stepping Up, the Council’s flagship Diversity Leadership Programme and multi-award-winning
initiative has launched its 4 cohort with 83 participants drawn from private and public sector
employers across the City and Region.

Proposal
8.

That the Committee notes the report and the work that is taking place to close pay gaps.

Other Options Considered
9.

None.

Risk Assessment
10.

Not required because this report is for information only.

Public Sector Equality Duties
16a)

Before making a decision, section 149 Equality Act 2010 requires that each decision-maker

Page 26

considers the need to promote equality for persons with the following “protected
characteristics”: age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion
or belief, sex, sexual orientation. Each decision-maker must, therefore, have due regard to the
need to:
i) Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation, and any other conduct prohibited
under the Equality Act 2010.
ii) Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and those who do not share it. This involves having due regard to the need to
--

remove or minimise disadvantage suffered by persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic;

-

take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected characteristic
that are different from the needs of people who do not share it (in relation to disabled
people, this includes, in particular, steps to take account of disabled persons'
disabilities);

-

encourage persons who share a protected characteristic to participate in public life or in
any other activity in which participation by such persons is disproportionately low.

iii) Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and
those who do not share it. This involves having due regard to the need to –
- tackle prejudice; and
- promote understanding.
16b)

Not required because this report is for information only.

Legal and Resource Implications
Legal
Not required because this report is for information only.
Financial
(a) Revenue
(b) Capital
Not required because this report is for information only.
Land
Not applicable.
Personnel
Not required because this report is for information only.
Appendices:
A – BCC Pay Gap Report - Data based as at March 2020

Page 27

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985
Background Papers:
Race Equality HR Data Product – Update 2020
https://www.bristolonecity.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/03/Race-Equality-Data-Product-UPDATE2020.pdf

Page 28

Pay Gap Report
Data based as at 31 March 2020

Workforce & Change
March 2021

www.bristol.gov.uk

Page 29

1.

Introduction ......................................................................................................................... 3

2.

Calculating the Pay Gap ........................................................................................................ 4

3.

Gender Pay Gap .................................................................................................................... 5

4.

Race Pay Gap ........................................................................................................................ 9

5.

Disability Pay Gap ............................................................................................................... 13

6.

LGB Pay Gap ....................................................................................................................... 16

7.

Closing the gap ................................................................................................................... 18

Page 30

1. Introduction
Gender pay gap reporting is a requirement of the Equality Act 2010 (Specific Duties
and Public Authorities) regulations 2017 for employers with 250 employees or more as at
a ‘snapshot date’. This report also provides the race, disability and LGB pay gaps in the
Council, currently, there is no statutory reporting requirement, but it is Council policy to
report these pay gaps.
Gender Pay is not the same as equal pay. Equal pay is about ensuring that both men
and women are paid the same for doing the same or similar jobs. Gender pay looks to
see how the balance of pay is distributed in an organisation irrespective of job roles.
Bristol City Council uses a job evaluation scheme to rank jobs and to ensure equal pay
for work of equal value. These arrangements apply to the majority of all jobs, the
remaining jobs are covered by national pay agreements, legal agreements (e.g. TUPE) or
local pay agreements (Craft).
The Gender Pay Gap measures the overall difference in actual hourly rates of pay
between men and women by both mean and median calculations. Mean being the
comparison of the average pay of men and women. Median being the comparison of the
mid-point value of the payments for men and women. A zero percentage indicates parity
between men and women. This same method is also applied to the Race and Disability
Pay Gap to show the difference between Black, Asian & Minority Ethnic employees,
White British employees, and Disabled employees against Non-Disabled employees.
Schools employees are excluded from this dataset as their reporting is the
responsibility of the governing body and they will be reported separately only where
their individual school or a group of schools e.g. in a Multi Academy Trust (MAT) has
over 250 employees.
As at March 2020 the headcount was 6,461 employees, of which 3,858 (60%) were
women, whereas the Female economically active population is only 47%. 750 (13%)
employee declared themselves as Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic, against an
economically active population of 13%. 581 (10%) employees reported as being disabled,
against a total population of (12%). 7% of disabled people declared themselves as
economically active (Office for National Statistics published data). At the time of writing
this report we do not know the ethnicity for 588 (9.1%) employees or the disability status
for 635 (9.8%) employees. The council is committed to addressing gaps in workforce
diversity reporting – see our Equality and Inclusion policy and strategy for more
information Equalities policy - bristol.gov.uk

Page 31

All pay calculations have been based on the same formula used in the Gender Pay
Gap Reporting legislation and covers all full pay relevant employees. Full pay relevant
employees are those that are employed on the snapshot date of 31 March and have
been paid in the period that the snapshot date falls without any reductions in pay.
The ethnic groups that make up Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic are;
Black/African/Caribbean/Black British, Asian/Asian British, mixed/multiple ethnic groups
and other ethnic groups. The ethnic groups that make up White Minority Ethnic are;
Gypsy/Roma/Traveller/Irish Traveller, Irish, Other European, and Other White
background.

2. Calculating the Pay Gap
The Mean Pay Gap
The mean figure is derived by adding the hourly pay rate for all employees then dividing by
the number of employees.
Gender - The mean gender pay gap is the difference between the mean hourly rate of pay of
male full-pay relevant employees and that of female full-pay relevant employees.
Race - The mean race pay gap is the difference between the mean hourly rate of pay of White
British full-pay relevant employees and that of Black, Asian, and Minority Ethnic or White
Minority Ethnic full-pay relevant employees.
Disability - The mean disability pay gap is the difference between the mean hourly rate of pay
of non-disabled full-pay relevant employees and that of disabled full-pay relevant employees.
LGB - The mean LGB pay gap is the difference between the mean hourly rate of pay of
heterosexual full-pay relevant employees and that of LGB (Lesbian, Gay and Bisexual) full-pay
relevant employees.

The Median Pay Gap
The median figure is the middle value of pay rates. Half our employees will earn more than
the median and half will earn less.
Gender - The median gender pay gap is the difference between the median hourly rate of pay
of male full-pay relevant employees and that of female full-pay relevant employees.
Race - The median race pay gap is the difference between the median hourly rate of pay of
White British full-pay relevant employees and that of Black, Asian, and Minority Ethnic or
White Minority Ethnic full-pay relevant employees.
Disability - The median disability pay gap is the difference between the median hourly rate of
pay of non-disabled full-pay relevant employees and that of disabled full-pay relevant
employees.

Page 32

LGB - The median LGB pay gap is the difference between the median hourly rate of pay of
heterosexual full-pay relevant employees and that of LGB full-pay relevant employees.

3. Gender Pay Gap
Women
Men
Difference
Pay Gap

Mean

Median

ONS Median

£15.37
£16.05
£0.68
4.26%

£14.05
£15.36
£1.31
8.53%

15.5%

The Councils gender pay gap analysis indicates that mean pay for men is 4.26% higher than
that of women and the median pay for men is 8.53% higher than that of women. The
difference between the mean and median figures is due to the high proportion of women in
the top quartiles of employees. The median gender pay gap is also significantly lower than
the national average of 15.5%.

Gender Pay Gap Trend
18.10%
15.43%
13.49%

5.47%

2015

8.90%

8.90%

8.53%

4.19%

4.07%

3.99%

4.08%

4.26%

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

Mean

Median

The Councils gender pay gap has reduced from a mean of 5.47% and a median of 18.1% in
2015, to a mean of 4.26% and a median of 8.53% in 2020. It is important to note that the
employees categorised as full pay relevant employees on the snapshot date can vary at each
reporting period, for example in this reporting period 88 employees were not categorised as
full pay relevant employees due to receiving reduced or nil payments due to maternity leave
compared to just 11 employees in 2019.
Analysis of the reasons for the Gender Pay Gap are provided below.

Page 33

Quartiles
Whilst the mean figure is positive it is the median figure that requires some analysis as it
indicates that either women are under-represented at the higher pay levels, or women are
over-represented at the lower pay levels. To illustrate this, we have divided the pay into four
equal quartiles

No. employees
Quartile
Quartile 1 (£5.00 - £11.90)
Quartile 2 (£11.91 - £14.79)
Quartile 3 (£14.80 - £19.39)
Quartile 4 (£19.40 -£85.52)

Men
626
525
841
559

Women
1071
906
1022
701

Total
1697
1431
1863
1260

Ratio
Men:Women
BCC = 41:59
37:63
37:63
45:55
44:56

A higher proportion of women are in the top 25 percent (Quartile 4) of jobs. The greatest
disparity between men and women is in the lowest 25 percent (Quartile 1) of jobs where a
significant number of jobs, whilst attracting less pay, have traditionally offered more flexible
working arrangements e.g. part time or term time hours which have proven to be an
attraction for women for a number of work life balance reasons. The number of care,
cleaning and administrative roles in the lower quartile has therefore had an impact on the
overall gender pay gap figure.

Full Time v Part Time
Whilst it is only necessary to report all full pay relevant employees together, when the
gender pay is analysed in more detail by considering the proportion of full and part time
employees impacts on the gender pay gap as the table below illustrates.

Women
Men
Difference
Mean Pay Gap

Full Time

Part Time

£16.49
£16.59
£0.10
0.6%

£14.27
£13.82
-£0.46
-3.3%

There is a disparity between male and female employees working full time and part time.
74% of part time workers are female whereas only 26% of part time workers are male. This is
influenced by the far higher proportion of women tending to seek a work life balance for
family commitments compared to men. The council offers a wide and diverse range of job
opportunities many of which are part time which attracts women to work for the
organisation. This is common throughout the public sector.

Page 34

25.8%
45.0%

Full Time

Male
55.0%

Part Time

Female

74.2%

When the mean pay gap is compared, we see the full-time mean is 0.6% and part time
mean is -3.3%.

Grade
8.00%
6.00%
4.00%
2.00%
0.00%
-2.00%
-4.00%
-6.00%
-8.00%
BG1 - 4 BG5

BG6

BG7

BG8

BG9

BG10 BG11 BG12 BG13 BG14 BG15 TP1 +

Mean Pay Gap

Overall Mean Pay Gap

The lowest three grade ranges (BG1 – 6) all have the largest negative gender pay gap which
indicates that the mean pay for female employees in these grades is higher than the mean
pay of male employees. However, the highest grades (BG15 and above) have a gender pay
gap. The TP1+ pay grade is the only grade where the gender pay gap is even greater than the
overall gender pay gap.

Page 35

Bristol City Council job evaluation scheme ensures that jobs are valued correctly at all the
relevant pay grades. The values for the mean gender pay gap correlate with the male to
female ratio in the four quartiles. As we have identified there are many more female staff
than male at the lower paid level and this is the reason for the negative pay gap at the lower
levels.

Analysis by Directorate
Analysis of the gender pay gap by Directorate shows clear differences between male and
female pay. When looking into more detail we can see that this is due to the distribution of
employees by quartiles and job types typically found in each Directorate for example:

Growth and Regeneration
People
Resources
BCC Overall

Mean

Median

6.09%
3.62%
7.02%
4.26%

6.45%
5.64%
14.58%
8.53%

Growth and Regeneration
This Directorate contains more male employees occupying upper quartile roles. Overall, the
Directorate has a 60:40 ratio of employees in favour of males, this disparity is also true when
looking at the upper quartiles (Upper Middle Quartile – M 64:36 F and Upper Quartile M
66:34 F). The lower quartiles are evenly distributed (Lower Middle Quartile M 53:47 F and
Lower Quartile M 56:44 F).
People
This Directorate has a ratio of employees 19:81 in favour of Females and the quartile
breakdown follows a similar distribution. Due to there being fewer male employees in the
People Directorate, a normal distribution cannot be achieved. Therefore, the distribution is
more likely to be random or variable. There is also a much higher percentage of female
employees working part time than any other part of the organisation.
Resources
This Directorate has a more even distribution of male and female employees (M 44:56 F)
compared to other Directorates. It has a high number of female employees working in the
lower quartiles (Lower Middle Quartile – M 42:58 F and Lower Quartile M 38:62 F). These
quartiles include services that are typically more flexible and offer better work life balance
options for female employees such as Cleaning Services and Admin and Business Support.
The upper quartiles in Resources are evenly distributed (Upper Middle Quartile – M 51:49 F
and Upper Quartile M 49:51 F).

Page 36

Core City and Local Public Sector Organisation Comparison
The below table shows the Gender Pay Gap statistics published by Core Cities and Local
Public Sector Organisations for the HM Government Gender Pay Gap Service. At the time of
writing not all of the below employees had published their data, they are marked as N/A.
31st March 2020
Organisation
Core Cities

Public
Sector Data

Bristol
Birmingham
Cardiff
Leeds
Liverpool
Manchester
Newcastle
Nottingham
Sheffield
Avon & Somerset Police
Avon & Wiltshire Mental Health
Partnership NHS
South West Ambulance Service
Bristol University
North Bristol NHS Trust
University of the West of England
Avon Fire & Rescue Service
University Hospitals Bristol NHS

Mean Gender Pay
Gap
4.26%
N/A
N/A
6.0%
6.6%
8.0%
2.9%
2.9%
1.4%
9.4%

Median Gender
Pay Gap
8.53%
N/A
N/A
10.4%
5.5%
7.9%
5.8%
0%
5.6%
16.0%

14.5%

7.4%

4.6%
18.3%
23.5%
11.2%
N/A
20.6%

16.0%
13.7%
6.5%
11.7%
N/A
1.4%

4. Race Pay Gap
Black, Asian, and Minority
Ethnic
White Minority Ethnic
White British

Mean

Median

Mean Pay Gap

Median Pay Gap

£14.30

£12.85

9.78%

16.0%

£15.17
£15.85

£14.36
£15.30

4.33%

5.48%

The councils race pay gap analysis indicates that mean pay for White British employees is
9.78% higher than that of Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic staff and the median pay for White
British employees is 16.0% higher than that of Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic staff.
The table below shows the mean pay gap by ethnic origin against
English/Welsh/Scottish/Northern Irish/British employees. It is important to highlight that the
low headcount in some of the ethnic groups makes it difficult to make statistically valid
comparisons.

Page 37

Ethnic Origin

Headcount Mean

African background
Any other Black, Black British or Caribbean
background
Arabic
Asian and White
Bangladeshi
Black African and White
Black Caribbean and White
Caribbean
Chinese
Indian
Irish
Other Asian background
Other ethnic group
Other European
Other mixed ethnic background
Other White background
Pakistani
Prefer not to say
Roma, Gypsy or Irish Traveller
Somali
English/Welsh/Scottish/Northern Irish/British

72
103

£13.25
£14.33

2
37
8
26
66
171
18
51
68
28
26
24
60
220
42
102
8
43
4665

£12.04
£15.16
£15.22
£15.38
£14.49
£13.83
£16.55
£15.92
£16.23
£15.56
£15.19
£13.98
£14.65
£14.96
£14.54
£15.12
£15.32
£11.20
£15.85

Mean Pay
Gap
16.4%
9.6%
24.0%
4.3%
4.0%
3.0%
8.6%
12.8%
-4.4%
-0.4%
-2.4%
1.8%
4.2%
11.8%
7.6%
5.6%
8.3%
4.6%
3.3%
29.4%

Race Pay Gap Trend
17.48%
16%

15.38%
12.96%

12.62%
9.78%

2017

2018

2019

Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic - Mean

2020

Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic - Median

The Councils Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic pay gap has reduced from a mean of 15.38% in
2017 to a mean of 9.78% in 2020. The median has reduced from 17.48% in 2019 to 16.0% in
2020.

Page 38

Quartiles
No. employees
Quartile
Quartile 1 (£5.00 - £11.90)
Quartile 2 (£11.91 - £14.79)
Quartile 3 (£14.80 - £19.39)
Quartile 4 (£19.40 -£85.52)

Black, Asian,
and Minority
Ethnic
280
184
178
111

Ratio
White
British
1140
1082
1472
971

White
Minority
Ethnic
93
76
90
61

BCC = 13:81:6
19:75:6
14:81:6
10:85:5
10:85:5

We tend to see a higher representation of Black, Asian, and Minority Ethnic employees in the
lower quartiles and a lower representation in the upper quartiles.

Full v Part Time

Black, Asian, and Minority
Ethnic
White Minority Ethnic
White British

Full Time
Mean

Full Time
Mean Pay
Gap

Part Time
Mean

Part Time Mean
Pay Gap

£15.44

7.4%

£12.48

13.4%

£15.82
£16.68

5.1%

£14.19
£14.41

1.5%

There is a small difference between the number of Black, Asian, and Minority Ethnic staff
working full time (12.8%) and part time (13.7%). When the mean pay gap is compared, we
see that the full time Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic pay gap reduces to 7.4% while part
time Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic pay gap increases to 13.4% which is above the overall
Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic mean pay gap.

Page 39

Grade
15.00%

10.00%
5.00%
0.00%
-5.00%
-10.00%
-15.00%
BG1 - 4 BG5

BG6

BG7

BG8

BG9

BG10 BG11 BG12 BG13 BG14 BG15 TP1 +

Mean Pay Gap - Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic

Overall Mean Pay Gap

The values for the mean race pay gap correlate with the Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic to
White British ratio in the four quartiles. As we have identified there are more Black, Asian,
and Minority Ethnic employees than White British at the lower paid level and this is the
reason for the negative pay gap. None of the mean pay gaps by grade are higher than the
overall Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic Mean Pay Gap.

Analysis by Directorate

Growth and Regeneration
People
Resources
BCC Overall

Black, Asian and
Minority Ethnic
Mean Pay Gap
10.41%
7.45%
12.07%
9.78%

White Minority
Ethnic Mean Pay Gap
11.83%
-3.56%
7.03%
4.33%

When analysing the gender pay gap by Directorate, we can clearly see large differences
between White British and Black, Asian, and Minority Ethnic pay. When looking into more
detail we can see that this is due to the distribution of employees by quartiles and job types
typically found in each Directorate for example:
Growth and Regeneration
The upper quartiles have a greater population of White British staff (Upper Middle Quartile –
89% White British and Upper Quartile – 90% White British). This indicates that Black, Asian
and Minority Ethnic employees are under-represented in the higher salary bands in the
Growth and Regeneration Directorate.

Page 40

People
The People Directorate has a lower Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic Pay Gap than the
councils overall figure and the analysis by quartiles and part time employees are evenly
distributed.
Resources
Within this Directorate we can see a higher representation of Black, Asian and Minority
Ethnic employees (24%) in the lowest quartile and a low representation of White British
employees (69%). There is also a higher proportion of part time Black, Asian, and Minority
Ethnic employees (18.5%).

Core City and Local Public Sector Organisation Comparison
Birmingham City Council reported a mean race pay gap of 7.9% and a median of 5.79% in
2019/20. Nottingham City Council reported a mean race pay gap of 11.7% and a median of
8.2% in 2019/20. Currently there are no other comparison figures available.

5. Disability Pay Gap
Disabled
Non-Disabled
Difference
Pay Gap

Mean

Median

£15.40
£15.61
£0.21
1.37%

£14.16
£14.92
£0.76
5.09%

The council’s disability pay gap indicates that mean pay for Non-Disabled staff is 1.37% higher
than that of Disabled staff and the median pay for Non-Disabled staff is 5.09% higher than
that of Disabled staff. The difference between the median and the mean figures is due to a
lower proportion of Disabled staff in the top quartile of employees.

Page 41

Disability Pay Gap Trend
5.09%

3.25%

1.97%
1.37%

2019

2020
Mean

Median

The Councils disability pay gap has reduced from a mean of 1.97% in 2019 to a mean of
1.37% in 2020. The median has increased from 3.25% in 2019 to 5.09% in 2020. This is due to
an increase in the number of disabled employees in Quartile 2, compared to the previous
report.

Quartiles
No. employees

Ratio

Quartile

Disabled

Non-Disabled

BCC = 10:90

Quartile 1 (£5.00 - £11.90)
Quartile 2 (£11.91 - £14.79)
Quartile 3 (£14.80 - £19.39)
Quartile 4 (£19.40 -£85.52)

152
159
170
109

1329
1156
1572
1001

10:90
12:88
10:90
10:90

Quartile 2 contains the highest proportion of Disabled employees compared to the other
quartiles that all have the same ratio of employees.

Full v Part Time

Disabled
Non-Disabled
Pay Gap

Full Time
Mean
£16.09
£16.52
2.6%

Part Time
Mean
£14.13
£14.09
-0.3%

There is a small difference between the number of Disabled staff working full time (10.7%)
and part time (10.0%). When the mean pay gap is compared, we see that the full time
disability pay gap increases to 2.6% whereas the part time disability pay gap decreases to -

Page 42

0.3% which tells us that mean pay for part time Disabled employees is 0.3% higher than part
time Non-Disabled employees.

Grade
12.00%
10.00%
8.00%
6.00%
4.00%
2.00%
0.00%
-2.00%
-4.00%
BG1 - BG5
4

BG6

BG7

BG8

BG9 BG10 BG11 BG12 BG13 BG14 BG15 TP1 +

Mean Pay Gap

Overall Mean Pay Gap

The highest mean disability pay gap is in the BG1 – 4 pay range. However due to the low
proportion of disabled employees in this cohort (6.4%) the average hourly rate used to
calculate the pay gap is less likely to see a normal distribution and the pay gap is much
higher. Other grades that are higher than the Bristol City Council overall disability pay gap
are BG6 and BG7.

Analysis by Directorate

Growth and Regeneration
People
Resources
BCC Overall

Disabled Mean Pay
Gap
3.22%
-0.76%
2.10%
1.37%

Growth and Regeneration
The lower middle quartile (Quartile 2) has a higher ratio of Disabled employees (Disabled,
12% and Non-Disabled, 88%). There are more Non-Disabled employees in the upper quartile
with only 8% Disabled employees in Quartile 3 and 9% in Quartile 4. This indicates that
Disabled employees are under-represented in the higher salary bands in the Growth and
Regeneration Directorate.
People
The People Directorate has a negative disability Pay Gap which means that mean pay for
Disabled employees 0.76% higher than their Non-Disabled counterparts. There is a lower
ratio of Disabled employees in Quartile 1 (9%) and higher ratios of Disabled employees in

Page 43

Quartile 2 (13%) and Quartile 3 (12%) while the ratio in Quartile 4 is the same as the council
overall (10%)
Resources
The lowest quartiles have a higher ratio of Disabled employees (Quartile 1, 12%) and Quartile
2 (11%). However, the Quartile 3 and 4 have the same ratio as the council overall (10%)

6. LGB Pay Gap
LGB
Heterosexual
Difference
Pay Gap

Mean

Median

£15.39
£15.71
£0.32
2.04%

£14.46
£14.92
£0.46
3.06%

The council’s disability pay gap indicates that mean pay for Heterosexual staff is 2.04% higher
than that of LGB staff and the median pay for Heterosexual staff is 3.06% higher than that of
LGB staff.

LGB Pay Gap Trend
This is the first year we have reported the LGB Pay Gap and so there is no historical trend
data.

Quartiles
No. employees

Ratio

Quartile

LGB

Heterosexual

BCC = 6:94

Quartile 1 (£5.00 - £11.90)
Quartile 2 (£11.91 - £14.79)
Quartile 3 (£14.80 - £19.39)
Quartile 4 (£19.40 -£85.52)

81
73
84
54

1073
968
1333
841

7:93
7:93
6:94
6:94

The lower quartiles have a slightly higher proportion of LGB employees than the upper
quartiles.

Full v Part Time

LGB
Heterosexual
Pay Gap

Full Time
Mean
£16.15
£16.49
2.1%

Part Time
Mean
£13.63
£14.25
4.4%

Page 44

There is a higher percentage of LGB employees working full time (6.9%) and part time (5.6%).
When the mean pay gap is compared, we see that the full time LGB pay gap increases slightly
to 2.1% and the part time LGB pay gap increases to 4.4%.

Grade
5.00%
4.00%
3.00%
2.00%
1.00%

0.00%
-1.00%
-2.00%
BG1 - 4 BG5

BG6

BG7

BG8

BG9

BG10 BG11 BG12 BG13 BG14 BG15 TP1 +

Mean Pay Gap

Overall Pay Gap

There are three grades where the mean pay gap is higher than the overall pay gap: BG6, BG9
and BG15. However again it is important to understand the context of these figures as small
numbers can affect the overall calculation.

Analysis by Directorate
LGB Mean Pay Gap
Growth and Regeneration
People
Resources
BCC Overall

12.17%
-7.75%
0.62%
2.04%

Growth and Regeneration
The lower quartiles have a higher LGB representation (Quartile 1, 11% and Quartile 2, 8%)
whilst the higher quartiles have less representation of LGB employees (Quartile 3, 5% and
Quartile 4, 3%).
People
The People Directorate has a negative LGB Mean Pay Gap which means that the mean pay of
LGB employees is 7.75% higher than that of Heterosexual employees. There is a lower ratio
of LGB employees in Quartile 1 (4%) and Quartile 2 (6%) and higher ratios of LGB employees
in Quartile 3 (8%) and Quartile 4 (8%).
Resources
The lowest and highest quartiles are in proportion with overall council ratio (Quartile 1, 6%

Page 45

and Quartile 4, 6%). The lower middle quartile has a slightly higher ratio (Quartile 2, 7%) and
the upper middle quartile has a slightly lower ratio (Quartile 3, 4%).

7. Closing the gap
Our equality policy and strategy set out our commitment to equality and diversity,
and how we will; tackle equalities issues, aim to eliminate discrimination, foster good
relationships between communities in Bristol and ensure those from different
backgrounds have similar life opportunities. The annual report was considered at Full
Council on 6th July 2021 and sets out the Council’s priorities for the next twelve months.
Our Workforce Strategy sets out the framework for our transformation journey, and
actions to help us meet the future challenges and requirements of the organisation. This
includes activities that will support narrowing the pay gaps identified in this report, such
as the launch of a diversity dashboard to assist managers with their workforce planning
to address diversity gaps. We have set stretching diversity targets and to increase the
number of BAME, disabled and women colleagues in senior management positions using
positive action initiatives. Specific action that is being taken that will contribute to closing
pay gaps are set out below.
A range of changes to recruitment and selection processes including new secondment
(previously ‘acting up’) policy. Changes include ensuring all opportunities are widely
promoted across the organisation rather than to specific teams/groups and will remove
the option of direct appointments to short term roles. There will also be positive action
guidance. These changes were implemented in September 2020 and have increased
opportunities for career progression and will improve the diversity of the workforce at
higher pay grades.
Service level workforce and succession have been introduced as part of the annual
service planning cycle. Managers have access to the HR diversity dashboard and
succession planning tools and are asked to identify and address diversity and pay gaps.
A new monthly Pay Gap Report is going to be created allowing us to have real time
information about the councils pay gaps. This will enable us to compare our statutory
reporting figure against a current pay gap.
A Talent development steering group has been established to shape a programme to
nurture talent and help colleagues develop their careers. This includes:
- talent mapping and the leadership pipeline
- identifying talent and encouraging colleagues to seek development

Page 46

-

-

-

-

New in-house leadership development module on talent development of
team members, encouraging effective career conversations
use apprenticeships systematically as pathways into professions where
there is occupational segregation and poor representation e.g. women and
BAME workers
increased offer of structured development opportunities
offer defined secondment and/or project opportunities for BCC Stepping
Up graduates, and colleagues completing apprenticeships, in house
leadership programmes and other learning programmes
Increased mentoring and coaching
Introduction of positive action initiatives such as Diverse Voices – which
provides experience leadership forums and brings diverse voices to council
decision making
Developing new initiatives such as career passports this intervention is
designed to improve the diversity of the workforce and will contribute to
closing pay gaps.

Page 47

We have set the following organisational targets for 2021/22: - Increase the percentage of employment offers made to people living in
the 10% most deprived areas – Target 6.5%
- Percentage of top earners who are women – Target 56%
- Reduce the gender pay gap – Target 3.75%
- Reduce the race pay gap – Target 7.5%
- Difference between progression rate of BAME and non-BAME employee –
Target 0% (no difference)
- Difference between progression rate of Women and Men – Target 0% (no
difference)
City-wide action to reduce the race pay gap. Bristol City Council has led the
development and production of the city’s first ever Race Equality H.R. data product,
which includes many of the major Public Sector organisations in the City, through
Bristol’s Race Equality Strategic Leaders Group. The latest data will include an evaluation
of Race representation at Board level or equivalent.
The group has committed to producing this report on a bi-annual basis, to enable
monitoring of trends in relation to race equality across partner organisations, with
detailed actions plans set by partners in order to bring about improvements in race
equality performance. The latest data will be published shortly.
The driving force of this key initiative is to ensure that we produce fairer, more
inclusive workplaces for our employees across the City as well as ensuring more
representative workforces to serve the communities of Bristol. This project focuses on
transparently presenting how all major public sector agencies in the City are performing
in terms of their race equality data, including detail on pay by race for key H.R. indicators
such as by representation, pay, grievance, disciplinary and sickness data.

Stepping UP, the Council’s flagship Diversity Leadership Programme and multi-awardwinning initiative has launched its 4 cohort with 83 participants drawn from private and
public sector employers across the City and Region.
A number of Equality and Inclusion initiatives are re-launching across the Council
including Reverse Mentoring, Positive Action Initiatives and a review of the current
Equality and Inclusion learning and development offer for Council Employees.

Page 48

Page 49

Agenda Item 14

Future of workspace principles
1. In line with the government roadmap, services will continue to be delivered
remotely whilst official advice is to work from home where possible and/or social
distancing measures are still required in the workplace. Priority access to workplaces
will continue for those who are not able to work well from home or elsewhere. This
includes for health reasons; lack of homeworking space; new starters and young
employees, who particularly benefit from close contact with their team.
2. As we move forward, our approach will be a blend of remote and in-person/on-site
working, based on the needs of the service. COVID restrictions may return from
time-to-time as we move forward so we all need to remain flexible and COVID-safe.
3. No-one is required to work at a BCC workplace where they agree with their manager
that their duties can be done successfully at home or elsewhere (including on a
mobile basis). Conversely, no-one is required to work at home or elsewhere if it is
detrimental to their health, where they do not have the space to do so safely or
where they believe they are happier/more productive working at a BCC workplace.
4. Meeting rooms at BCC workplaces will be equipped with technology to enable some
participants to attend in person and others to join remotely (so-called “hybrid
meetings”).
5. Several tools are available to help employees and their managers:
• COVID-19 Risk Assessment Tool
• Display Screen Equipment Workstation Checklist
• My Health and Wellbeing Plan
• Personal Emergency Evacuation Plan
• Stress in the Workplace assessment
6. Managers ensure that the wellbeing of each of their team members is supported
through reviewing the self-assessments/tools in 1-2-1 conversations about their
needs and preferences.
7. Managers support colleagues to stay connected with their team, wherever they are
based.
8. Standard kit for office-based colleagues is a laptop, mouse and headset. A mobile
phone is also supplied where required. For homeworkers, a monitor, keyboard,
footrest and adjustable chair are available on request by the manager to Workplace
Support (WPS). Desks are only supplied to homeworkers where specifically
recommended by a workstation assessment. Costs of all equipment supplied are
charged to the employing service. It’s not normally possible to have a specific
workplace set-up in more than one location so those who return to working at a BCC

Page 50

workplace for most of their working time will need to bring BCC equipment back
from home. However, the approach is not “one size fits all”; individual needs are
important and will be respected. Advice is available from the Reasonable
Adjustments team.
9. Workspaces in City Hall and 100 Temple Street are divided into zones and one zone
is allocated to each Director. The size of the zone is based on the office-based
headcount (less any office-based colleagues who are required to work in communitybased workplaces) and assumes that some older workplaces will be closed and the
services moved into City Hall/100 Temple Street or other locations. Zones are subject
to change over time in line with the Council’s emerging estate strategy. Some
agreements between directors are required where a colleague needs a specific space
that is not available in their zone.
10. Each zone contains a mix of desked and collaborative spaces, lockers and secure
storage, social spaces and private rooms/pods (subject to availability). Directors
work with Facilities Management to develop the workspace as needs be.
11. It is the Director’s responsibility to ensure that their zone is effectively managed and
that all members of their teams understand and demonstrate expected standards of
behaviour. They agree with their Heads of Service how they will use their zone – for
example, will they allocate it to certain services on certain days, or do some services
need a week-round presence? A desk booking system will be in place to help manage
the space and assist with COVID contact tracing. Room booking apps will be updated
to restrict block booking and overcome no-shows.
12. WPS manage common areas such as meeting rooms, the Cash Hall (City Hall) and the
Nexus (100 Temple Street), resource areas and tea points but are not responsible for
the management of director’s zones. Facilities Management manage workplace risk
assessments and safety (including COVID) measures for workplaces (with input from
Safety, Health & Wellbeing colleagues, as appropriate), though everyone has a part
to play in ensuring that workplaces are safe and healthy.

Page 51

Page 52

Agenda Item 15
AGENDA ITEM NO
BRISTOL CITY COUNCIL
HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE
22 July 2021

Report of:

Director of Workforce and Change

Title:

Selection Committee – size and composition

Ward:

N/A

Officer Presenting Report:

Mark Williams, Head of Human Resources

Contact Telephone Number: 07795 446270
RECOMMENDATION
That the committee recommends to Full Council that the Selection
Committee is reduced from 9 to 6 members.
Summary
The reports seeks the committee’s approval to recommend to Full Council a
reduction in the size of the Selection Committee.

The significant issues in the report are:
 As currently constituted, the Selection Committee has 9 members. This

is considered to be too large a committee to undertake the effective
recruitment and selection of senior leaders.
 A reduction to 6 members will mean that the committee remains
politically balanced.

1. Policy
The recruitment and selection of Directors, Executive Directors and the
Chief Executive are made by the Selection Committee in accordance

Page 53
1

with the Council’s constitution and officer employment rules. Full Council
determines the size of the Selection Committee.
2. Consultation
2.1

Internal

The proposed change has been discussed and agreed with the Party
Group Whips.
2.2

External

Not applicable
3. Context
3.1

At the Annual Meeting of the Council held on 25th May 2021, the
selection committee was established as a 9 member committee. This
has been the subject of recent review by officers and discussion with
Party Group Leads on the committee.

3.2

It is considered that a committee of 9 is too large and above all will not
provide a good experience for candidates who are interviewed for
senior roles in the organisation.

3.3

Reducing the size of the committee by a third to 6 members is
considered to be much more appropriate and enables the committee to
remain politically balanced.

4. Proposal
That the committee recommends to Full Council that the Selection
Committee is reduced from 9 to 6 members.
5. Other Options Considered
5.1

The option of retaining the Committee at it currently constituted size
was considered but has been discounted for the reasons set out in the
report.

6. Risk Assessment
6.1

No risks have been identified.

Public Sector Equality Duties

Page 54
2

7a)

Before making a decision, section 149 Equality Act 2010 requires that
each decision-maker considers the need to promote equality for
persons with the following “protected characteristics”: age, disability,
gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief,
sex, sexual orientation. Each decision-maker must, therefore, have due
regard to the need to:
i) Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other
conduct prohibited under the Equality Act 2010.
ii) Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a
relevant protected characteristic and those who do not share it. This
involves having due regard, in particular, to the need to -- remove or minimise disadvantage suffered by persons who share
a relevant protected characteristic;
- take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic that are different from the needs of people
who do not share it (in relation to disabled people, this includes, in
particular, steps to take account of disabled persons' disabilities);
- encourage persons who share a protected characteristic to
participate in public life or in any other activity in which
participation by such persons is disproportionately low.
iii) Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and those who do not share it. This involves
having due regard, in particular, to the need to –
- tackle prejudice; and
- promote understanding.

7b)

An Equality Impact Assessment has not been completed in relation to
this report.

Legal and Resource Implications
Legal
The recommendation in relation to the size of the Selection Committee
complies with the requirements of Section 15 of the Local Government
and Housing Act 1989 and the Local Government (Committee and
Political Groups) Regulations.
Legal advice provided by Husinara Jones, Team Leader /Solicitor, 1
July 2021

Page 55
3

Financial
(a) Revenue
No financial advice sought.
(b) Capital

None

Land
None
Personnel
None
Appendices: None
LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985
Background Papers: None

S:\Reports\2011-12\Templates & Merges\REPORT.doc

Page 56
4

Agenda Item 16

HR Committee
22nd July 2021
Report of:

Director: Workforce & Change

Title:

COVID-19 - workforce update and return to workplaces

Ward:

N/A

Officer Presenting Report:

Mark Williams (Head of Human Resources)

Contact Telephone Number:

07795 446270

Recommendation
That the Committee notes the report.
Summary
COVID-19 has been the most significant incident the council has had to manage in living memory. The
council responded quickly and effectively. Further national restrictions were introduced on 5th January
2021 and all the national restrictions were lifted on the 19 th July 2021. This report provides an update on
our recovery plans for workplaces.
The significant issues in the report are:
- We are taking a risk-based approach to opening workplaces which takes account of the current rate of
COVID-19 case rates in the city; the advice of the city’s Director of Public Health and our obligations to
our employees under the Health and Safety at Work Act. We are taking account of the latest
Government advice which states employers can start to plan for a return to workplaces
- We have introduced changes to the way we manage office spaces at the council’s main offices at City
Hall and Temple Street, through the introduction of zoned and socially-distanced work desks for services
on a trial basis. The zoning arrangements take into account a reduced requirement for desks as many
staff located in these services have been continuing to work from home effectively.
- The risk of exposure to COVID-19 remains high in workplaces and we will continue to manage the risks
in accordance with the COVID secure workplace guidance even though this will no longer be a legal
requirement from the 19th July 2021.
-.

Page 57

Policy
1.

The Council’s HR policies have been modified where appropriate to reflect the current
circumstances. For example, sickness absence related to COVID-19 is discounted under the
Supporting Attendance Policy.

Consultation
2.

Internal
Regular meetings are held with the trade unions who support the approach that is being taken
regarding the management of workplaces. Managers are kept regularly appraised of the plans
and have a chance to discuss at the monthly Leadership Forum.

3.

External
None.

Context
4.

The organisation responded swiftly to COVID-19. Frontline services have maintained the full
range of services by adapting the way they are delivered throughout the pandemic. Staff who
work in city centre offices moved rapidly to working from home. We have also supported staff
to continue to attend workplaces for well-being reasons.

5.

Following the latest Government announcement about lifting restrictions, we are taking a
measured approach to opening workplaces which takes account of the current rate of COVID-19
case rate in the city; the advice of the city’s Director of Public Health and our obligations to our
employees under the Health and Safety at Work Act. Government guidance is that employers
can start to plan return to workplaces and this is the approach we are following, we have been
working closely with managers over the last few months to prepare for a safe and controlled
return to the workplace. Our frontline services are returning to normal service delivery
arrangements and our risk assessments reflect the requirements of managing COVID secure
workplaces as infection rates remain very high in the city. As a local measure, we will continue
to require staff to wear face coverings when moving about in workplaces. We will continue to
maintain social distancing measures in offices (including desk spacing) and promote good
hygiene measures. We are also asking staff to continue to work from home where their job
enables them to do this as infection rates remain high in the city. We are keeping the situation
under regular review. As part of our work to reduce COVID cases we are also encouraging all
staff to get both vaccine doses and take a lateral flow test twice a week if they are attending the
workplace

6.

We are supporting the health and wellbeing of staff through a number of initiatives - the work
was informed by pulse surveys to ask staff what support they need. This includes regular
bulletins with advice on how stay connected with colleagues whilst working remotely, resilience
workshops, lunchtime-learning sessions to address concerns about returning to the workplace.

Over the past 15 months, teams and the majority of services have continued to operate effectively
and staff surveys have confirmed that employees are keen to retain the benefits of flexible working.
This has provided an opportunity to re-evaluate the use of workplaces, whilst supporting the desire for

Page 58

continued flexible working from many employees. A return to workplace project was established in
March 2021. Through the project we have:i)

ii)
iii)

iv)

Put in place zoned areas for services at City Hall and Temple Street which are locally
managed. A desk booking system is used for test and trace purposes and colleagues who
use the offices have to undergo an induction to re-orientate them into the workplace. The
effectiveness of zoning will be reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Introduced new Future Workplace principles. These are provided at Appendix A and were
the subject of consultation with trade unions and staff led groups.
Commissioned a supplier to install hybrid meeting technology in three meeting rooms at
City Hall. This is scheduled to be installed by September. We are also trailing meeting pods
to provide additional confidential meeting spaces at City Hall.
Undertaken regular surveys and discussion groups to understand the needs of staff.

7.

Daily monitoring of absence due to COVID-19 continues. The chart below shows the sickness
absence rate by directorate since March 2020:

8.

Employees at all levels in the organisation – including those within the HR, Internal
Communications and OD teams - have responded and adapted to COVID-19 very positively
through their work in supporting the Council’s response to the pandemic.

Proposal
9.

That the Committee notes this report.

Other Options Considered
10.

None as this report is for information only.

Risk Assessment

Page 59

11.

Not required because this report is for information only. However, the return to workplace
project has a detailed project plan and risks are managed appropriately as part of the project.

Public Sector Equality Duties
15a)

Before making a decision, section 149 Equality Act 2010 requires that each decision-maker
considers the need to promote equality for persons with the following “protected
characteristics”: age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion
or belief, sex, sexual orientation. Each decision-maker must, therefore, have due regard to the
need to:
i) Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct prohibited under
the Equality Act 2010.
ii) Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and those who do not share it. This involves having due regard, in particular,
to the need to --

remove or minimise disadvantage suffered by persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic;

-

take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected characteristic
that are different from the needs of people who do not share it (in relation to disabled
people, this includes, in particular, steps to take account of disabled persons'
disabilities);

-

encourage persons who share a protected characteristic to participate in public life or in
any other activity in which participation by such persons is disproportionately low.

iii) Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and
those who do not share it. This involves having due regard, in particular, to the need to –
- tackle prejudice; and
- promote understanding.
15b)

Not required because this report is for information only. However, the return to the workplace
project has a comprehensive Equalities Impact Assessment in place.

Legal and Resource Implications
Legal
Not required because this report is for information only.
Financial
(a) Revenue
(b) Capital
Not required because this report is for information only.
Land

Page 60

Not applicable.
Personnel
Not required because this report is for information only.
Appendices:
Appendix A – Future Workplace Principles
LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985
Background Papers:
None.

Page 61

